
   

            
 Purchasing Division 
 
 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 
DATE:  September 14, 2015 
FROM:  City of Grand Junction Purchasing Division 
TO:   All Offerors 
RE: RFP-4100-15-DH Medical, Dental, and Mental Health Services Contract for Mesa 

County Detention Facility 
 
Offerors responding to the above referenced solicitation are hereby instructed that the requirements 
have been clarified, modified, superseded and supplemented as to this date as hereinafter described. 
 
Please make note of the following clarifications: 
 

1.  Q.  Meds – Do you accept meds that come in with someone or are brought for someone? 
 
A.  Yes, subject to approval. 

 
2. Under Section 4.2 Specifications/Scope of Services, Page 14, for the Dental Equipment 

available to the service provider, 2 dental chairs shall be corrected to 1 dental exam chair. 
 

3. Q.  What is average inmate length of stay? 
 
A.  21.6 days 

  
4. Q.  What is done with meds that get left behind? 

 
A.  They are retained under lock and key in medical for two weeks post inmate departure.  If 

the meds are not picked up at the end of the two weeks the meds are destroyed. 
 

5. Q.  What are done with controlled substances that come in with a newly arrived inmate or are 
brought in for an inmate? 
 
A.  They are subject to approval. 

 
6. Q.  What mobile x-ray is used-on site?   

 
A. Pacific Mobile and Diagnostics Laboratories. 

 
7. Q.  What about off-site x-rays? 

 



   

A.  X-Rays are performed off-site when ordered by the Contractor’s physician, typically St. 
Mary’s Hospital or Community Hospital. 
 

8. Q.  Who provides ambulance service? 
 
A.  Ambulance service is provided by the Grand Junction Fire Department. 

 
9. Q.  For the electronic medical records system, concerning laptops and hardware, will the 

County own them or will the awarded firm? 
 
A. The awarded firm will own and retain any/all hardware they bring into the site for the 

purposes for providing the electronic medical records system. 
 

10. Q.  How long is required for staff training? 
 
A. Facility specific security/orientation training typically takes less than 8 hours. 

 
11. Q.  What about PTO accrual rates and banks? 

 
A. Firm agrees to make a good faith effort to retain the services of the existing Health Care 

Staff at the Mesa County Detention Facility that are or may currently be employees of 
another firm.  Firm agrees to recognize each of the current Health Care Staff members 
respective date of hire with their current employer to determine each of their employees 
seniority and level of fringe benefits.  
 

12. Q.  Is the Mesa County Sheriff’s Office and/or the Mesa County Detention Facility currently 
operating under any consent decree(s)? 
 
A.  No. 

 
 

13. Q.  What about flu clinics?  How do you want them utilized?  Frequency of days and times? 
 
A.  This is a service provided to our employees we are interested in continuing.  Last year 

there were two clinics.  Each clinic lasted three hours and was staffed by two nurses. 
 

14. Q.  Would the County share any utilization data by volume and cost for the last two years 
relating to: 

 
 2014 2013 

Volume Cost Volume Cost 
a.  Pharmaceuticals     

b. Inpatient care (days)     
c. Outpatient/specialist care     
TOTAL COSTS   

 
A. For calendar year 2014, outside incurred costs including emergency room, hospitalization, 

specialty services, off-site radiology and ambulance services totaled $50,742.83 ($742.83 
over the aggregate cap).  For calendar year 2014, County reimbursed pharmaceuticals (for 
HIV and Hepatitis) totaled $23,148.33.  The County does not have information related to 
2013 available at this time.    The County typically does not hold information specific to 



   

costs incurred by the current contractor to provide all other pharmaceuticals except as 
follows (the following figures are for pharmaceuticals that are the contractor’s 
responsibility): March 2015, $26.506.77; April 2015, $22,022.58; May 2015, $9,200.87; 
June 2015, $11,622.71; July 2015, $15,752.90; August 2015, $23,821.68. 
 

15. Q.  Would the County share a copy of the contract for inmate medical services with the current 
vendor? 
 
A.  A copy of the current contract will be attached. 

 
16. Q.  Are diagnostic services provided inside the jail (lab and x-ray) included in the 

$50,000 annual, aggregate cap? (E.g., Using mobile services saves transportation and 
security costs but alternatively could also contribute towards the cap?) 
 
A.  No.  Those costs are not applied toward the $50,000.00 annual aggregate cap. 

 
17. Q.  Can the County confirm that the costs for offsite care for self-inflicted injuries are not the 

vendor’s risk? 
 
A.  Confirmed. 

 
18. Q.  Would the County share the specs for the laptops and workstations for the EMR bid? 

 
A.  Currently, there are seven County owned desktops (and zero laptops) assigned to 

Medical.  They are all Windows 7 operating systems.  Specs for hardware brought in by the 
vendor for the EMR would need to be determined by the vendor. 

 
19. Q.  Will the County allow the vendor to use the County’s servers to host EMR? 

 
A.  The County is using VM servers and would consider allowing this. 

 
20. Q.  Will the County provide Internet access to host the EMR? 

 
A.  Yes. 

 
21. Q.  Does Mesa County Jail contract directly with New World, or is there another agency that 

holds the contract? 
 
A.  The City of Grand Junction is the host agency for New World and holds the contract.  The 

Grand Junction Police Department, the Mesa County Sheriff’s Office, the Fruita Police 
Department and the Palisade Police Department are all users under the contract.  
 

22. Q.  Can the County confirm that the cost of offsite care for US Marshall inmates are paid by 
USM and are not the vendor’s risk? 
 
A.  Confirmed. 

 
23. Q.  What agencies does Mesa County Detention Facility work with for mental health services, 

and what service does each provide? 
 



   

A.  JBBS, contracted through Mind Springs Health – offers inmate classes, some counseling 
and some re-entry services.  Mind Springs Health/West Springs Hospital has been used, in 
a very limited capacity, for treatment and stabilization (on M1 and detainer) of inmates with 
severe symptoms.  The State Hospital. 
 

24. Q.  Are there other agencies/providers (if other than the above) in the Community MCDF uses 
to coordinate re-entry services? 
 
A.  JBBS – contracted through Mind Springs.  The VA Hospital offers some assistance. 

 
25. Q.  Who is the current lab provider and what have those costs been? 

 
A.  Lab Corps.  The County does not have information as to what the current provider’s costs 

with Lab Corps have been. 
 

26. Q.  What has been the annual spend on Medical Supplies / equipment? 
 
A.  Consumable medical supplies are the responsibility of the contractor.  The County does 

not have information as to what the current provider’s costs have been pertaining to 
consumable medical supplies.  New/replacement equipment has been purchased by the 
County as needed, there is not an annual budgeted amount specifically for 
new/replacement medical equipment. 
 

27. Q.  Would the County share what vendor is used for radiology/x-ray and the cost for that 
service? 
 
A.  Pacific Mobile and Diagnostics Laboratories.  The County does not have information as to 

what the current provider’s costs have been for on-site x-ray services. 
 

28. Q.  Is methadone provided for pregnant female inmates when needed? If so, how many 
inmates per year typically use this program? 
 
A.  Yes.  There are no known instances of this having occurred in the last 2 years. 

 
29. Q.  Would the County clarify what constitutes a vacancy in regards to staffing? i.e., a missed 

hour or a missed shift, the rate used to calculate a credit for any vacancy, and the frequency 
with which this has occurred historically? 
 
A.  If a position were vacant in excess of 10 days, then the County would expect re-

imbursement for each day/shift the position remained vacant beyond the 10 day allowance 
period.  The rate used to calculate would be the rate of the employee who vacated the 
position.  Historically there have been few long term vacancies, as vacant shifts were 
covered by other contractor personnel during the hiring process. 
 

The original solicitation for the project noted above is amended as noted.  
 
All other conditions of subject remain the same. 
 
Respectfully, 



   

 
Duane Hoff Jr., Senior Buyer 
City of Grand Junction, Colorado 
























































